
UNITED STATES Er~\'IRONt~ENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

BEFORE THE REGION.A.L AD!·li NISTRATOR 

In the r1atter of ) 
) 

J. C. Ehrlich Chenical Co., Inc. ) I.F. ~ R. Docket ~o . III-171 -C 
) 

Respondent ) 

I~ITIAL D~CISION 

Preliminary State~ent 

This is a proceedinQ under Sec. 14(a ) of the Federal Insecticide, 

Fungicide, and Rodenticide hCt, as amended (7 U.S .C . 136 l(a )) , 1973 

Supp . , for the assessment of a civil penalty for violation of the Act. 

On Septe~ber 5, 1978, the Director, Enforcement Division, United 

States Environmental Protection Agency , Region III (Complainant), 

issued a Complaint together with l~otice of Opportunity for :-learing, 

charging J. C. Ehrlich Chemical Co., Inc. (Respondent) with violation 

of the Act. 

The Complaint chargee Respondent with violation of Sec. 12 of 

the Act, 7 U.S .C. 136j, by holding for sale on or about August S, 1977, 

in Reading, Pennsylvania, certain pesticides, which pesticide labels 

were not in compliance with the provisions of FIFRA as follows: 
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Count I 

• 

"On the August 5, 1977, an Environmental Protection /\£Ieney {EPA) 

Consur:1er Safety Officer obtained a sample of the nroduct "t~anic Circl e 

Mill Insecti cide with JDVP'' (I . D. No. 139509) (E PA Reg. No . ~704 - 13 ) 

during an EstablishMent Inspection at Resoondent's facility located 

at 300 Hiesters Lane, Reading, Pennsylvania 19605 . At that establish-

rnent, a san~le of the product was collected from stock bei ng held 

for sale. 

The product "r1a~ic Circle r·lill Insecticide with DDVP" is a 

pesticide within the meaning of Section 2(u) of the Act, 7 U.S.C . 

Sec. 13G(u) . 

Said pesticide \:as rev iev1ed anJ found to be in violation of t he 

Act in the followin g respects: 

ihe sar:1~le label differs fron the label accepted 
for reqistration on June 16, 1975, in that the sa~ole 
label 1'Caution" state~ent \·Jas incor.1plete, (Sec. 2(q)(l)(G)), 
clains made for the oroduct differ fror clains 
nade as a part of the s tate~ent of registration, (Sec. 2(~) 
(l)(A)) , use directions also differed fron stater.~ent of 
registration (Sec. ~{q){l)( A)) , and the v1arranty disclaimer 
negates or detracts from label claims, Sec . 2(~)(l)(A)) . . ... 

The action of Respondent in distri buting , selling, offering for 

sale, holding for sale, shipri n£, or delivering for shipment the 

product ":1agic Circle Insecticide vlith DDVP" is according l ~' in 

violation of Sections 12 (a)( l )(B) and 12(a)(l)( E) of the Act , 

7 U.S .C . 13Gj(a)(l)(B) and 136j(A)( l )(E)." 

1\s will be discussed later Count I is the only allegation which 

wa s contested at the hearing in this matter, the total proposed 
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civil penalty for which is $5 ,600. 00 . 

Count II 

11 0n August 5, 1977 , an Environfllental Protection A9enc~' (E 0 A) 

Consur.~er Safety Officer obtai ned a sam!J 1 e of the oroduct 1111agi c 

Circle Industrial Insecticide" (I.D. NO. 139586) (EPA Re9 . j·~o. 

4704-5) durin9 an Establishment Inspection at ~esrondent's 

facility, l ocated at 800 Hiesters Lane, Reading, Pennsylvania 19605. 

At that establishment, a sample of the product was collected fron stock 

being held for sale . 

The product "ilagic Circle Industrial Insecticide" is a resticide 

within the r:~eaning of Section ~ (u) of the Act, 7 !'.S .C. Sec. 136(u) . 

The sarnole label failed to bear the renistration number (EPA 4704-

PA-Ql) assigned under Section 7 to each establishment in which it 1·1as 

produced. Thus, the nroduct is fllisbranded as defined in Section 2(~)(1)(0) 

of the Act, 7 ~.S.C. l36(q)(l)(D). 

The action of Respondent in distributin~, selling, offering for 

sale, holding for sale, shipnin9, or deliverin~ for shipment the 

product "~1agic Circle Industrial Insecticide" is accordingl y in 

violation of Sec. 12(a)(l)(E) of the Act, 7 l:.S.C. 136j{a)(l)(E)." 

This Count \~as stipulated by the parties. f·lo civi l penalty was 

proposed . 
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"On August 5, 1977, an Environr:lental Protection Artency (EPA) 

Consumer Safety Officer obtained a sanple of the oroduct "Magic 

Circle Residual Spray'' (I.D . ~o. 139591) (EPA Re~. No . 4704 -22) durin~ 

an Establishment Inspection at ~esoondent's facility located at DQO 

Hiesters Lane, r;eading, Pennsylvania 19605. At that establishment, a 

samp le of the product was collected from stock being held for sale. 

The product "!·1a9ic Circle Residual S~ra~,·· is a nesticide \'lithin 

the meaning of Section 2(u) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. Sec. 136(u ) . 

Said pesticide was reviewed and found to be in violation of the 

Act in the followin0 respects: 

a. On or about Julv 30, 1974, Resoondent was notified 
by EPA of a correction to be incorporated into the product's 
label. The required change was not found on the label 
accoMpa nying the sample product held for sale. Thus, the 
sample label is false and ~isleadinQ and is misbranded as 
defined in Section 2(q)(l)(A) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. 
136(q)(l )(A). 

b. The samrle label is false and nisleading in that it 
states that the product was "Manufactured by J. C. Ehr l ~ :: h" 
when in fact the product was "nanufactured for J . C. Ehrlich." 
Thus, the ~roduct is misbranded as defined in Section 2(~)(1)(A) 
of the Act, 7 ll.S .C. Sec. 136(q)(l}(A). 

The action of Respondent in distributing, selling, offering for 

sale, holding for sale, ship~inq or deliverinrt for shi~ment the nroduct 

"t1agic Circle Residual Spray" is accordingly in violation of Section 

12(a)(l)(E) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. Sec. 136j(a)(l)(E)." 

This Count was stipulated by the parties . No civi l penalty 

was proposed. 
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Count IV 

"On J\u~ust 5, 1977, an Environr.~ental Protection Agency (EPA) 

Consuner Safety Officer obtained a sar:1ple of the !)roduct ":Jagic 

Circle Warfarin Rat and ~louse Killer" (I.D . l'lo. 139537) (EPA Ren. 

No. 4704-10) during an Establishnent Ins pection at Respondent's 

facility located at 809 lliesters lane, ~eading , Pennsylvania 19605. 

At that establishnent, a sarnnle of the product was collected fro~ 

stock being held for sale. 

The product "l·tagic Circle Harfarin Rat and ~tcuse Killer " is 

a ~esticide within the meaning of Section 2(u) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. 

l36(u). 

Said pesticide was revie\led and found to be in violation of the 

fl.ct as folloHs : 

a. The sam!)le l abel ~earin9 EPA Req. ~o. 4704-10 is false an0 
r:1isl eading in that it has directions for use of "4· oz . to 
1 pound" 1r1hereas , the 1 abe 1 accepted b_v EPA pursuant to 
Section 3 of the Act, bearin~ EPA Re~. No. 4704-1 0, has 
directions for use of "2 oz. to 1 round". Therefore, the 
product label is misbranded as defined in Section 2(~)(1)(A) 
of the Act, 7 U. S.C . Sec. 136(a)( l)(A). 

b. The product label stated in part: 

Rats: Effective use of ~ia9 ic Circle ~ut and ~,ouse 
Killer derends upon providing sufficient bait from 
successive feed ings for five or more days. 

However , during a ten-day feedin9 study involving t~r1enty 
albino rats, the test animals consumed by choice only 
2 4. s~; of the bait resulting in a 100~; norta 1 ity. P..n 
acceptance rate of 33~; and 1 005~ mortality rate are necessarv 
to consider the oroduct effective in the commensal rodent · 
environment. Therefore, the product i s ~1isbranded as 
defined in Section 2(n.)(l)(A) of the Act, 7 U.S.C 
l36(q)(l)(A) . 

The action of Respondent in distributin0, sellin9, offerin9 

for sale, holdinn for sale, shippin~ or delivering for shipment 

the product "t·1a9ic Circle lJarfa rin Rat and r1ouse Killer" i s accordin9ly 

in violation of Sec. 12(a)(l)(E) of the Act , 7 U.S. C. 13Gj(a)(l)(e )." 
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Subparagraph a. of Count IV was withdrawn due to error in records 

of Complainant. All other paragraphs of Count IV were subsequently 

withdrawn and will be discussed later. A civil penalty of $2,800.00 

was ororosed. 

Prooosed Civil Penalty 

In view of the above violations and pursuant to Section 14(a) of 

the Act, 7 U.S.C. 136 l(a) and the Guidelines for Assessment of 

Civil Penalties, 39 FR 27711, 2771 : (July 31, 1974), the U. S. 

Environ~ental Protection Agency proposes to assess a civil penalty of 

Eight thousand four hundred dollars (£3,400 ) against r-espondent as 

fo 11 OI'JS: 

Count I 
Violation of Section 12(a)(l)(B) $ 2800 .00 
Violation of Section 12(a)(l)(E) 2800.00 

Count II 
Violation of Section 12(a )( l )( E) 00.00 

Count III 
Violation of Section 12(a)(l)(E) :JO . OO 

Count IV 
Violation of Section 12(a)(l)(E) 2800.00 

(-
. ) 8400.00 

It should be noted that neither the Administrative Law Judge 

nor the Regional Adr.1inistrator is bound by the amount of proposed 

penalty in the Complaint. See 40 CFR 16G.46(b) and 168. 60(b)(3). 

Respondent, through its Vice- President , filed an answer requesting 

a hearing and alle~in9 that by any standard, even if these minor 

violations are as alleged, the amount of the prorosed civil penalty is 

out of line . 
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The proceedinas were conducted pursuant to the applicable P.ules 

of Practice, 40 CFR 168. 01 et seo. At my request, the parties, pur

suant to Section 168.36(e) of the Rules, corresponded with me for the 

pur~ose of accomplishing some of the purposes of a prehearin~ con

ference (see Sec. 163.35{a) of the Rules). 

A prehearing conference was held in Philadelrhia, Pennsylvania, 

on April 25, 1979, at \'Jhich certain stipulations \<Jere a~reed UI)On b~' 

the parties as follows: 

1. The products \'Jere obtained by Complainant in accordance 

\'lith 1 a \II by an authorized emp 1 oyee thereof. EPA 

Exhibits 1 and 2. 

2. The proposed civil penalty was corn9uted in accordance with 

the EPA Guidelines . ~nd further, that the nespondent is 

in Category V, \IJith annual gross sales of over $1 , ()')0,!10'LOO . 

Paynent of the penalty \·Jill not affect its ability to 
1/ 

reMain in business.-

The Complainant was represented by Joseph J. C. Donovan, Esq . , 

and Resr>ondent \'Jas represented by its Vice-President, Victor H. 

Hamel . 

Respondent filed a brief in sup~ort of proposed findings of 
2/ 

fact and conclusions of law , '"hich I have carefully considered .-

1J Res pondent contested the category of "adverse effects unknown" 
allegi ng that there exists no evidence of any adverse effects. 

fj Complainant did not file a brief in support of proposed f i ndings 
of fact and conclusion of law. It, therefore, must be assumed that 
Complainant has rested its case with re~ard to all Counts with the 
exception of Count IV which was withdrawn during the hearing. 
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Counts I I and I II were not contested and no ci vi 1 penalty was 

proposed. Therefore , it is not considered necessary to discuss 

the1:1 further. 

Count I, with a proposed civil penalty totalling $5600.00, 

was contested by Respondent . 

P.esrondent held for sale and sold ~~agic Circle t!ill Insecticide 

with DDVP in S, 30 and 50 9allon sizes all of which had affixed thereto 

an acceptable registered label. Respondent also had 33 cans of the 

same product on a shelf in the warehouse which were all one-gallon 

sizes with a total retail value of $160.00 . The label affixed to 

these one-gallon sizes had been for many years a reristered EPA label. 

Tr. p. 75. :lone of these one-gallon sizes had ever been sold 'tlithout 

a current registered label. 

This size was a very slow mover and none had been packed since 

1974. Tr. p. 71. The fact that the one-gallon size did not have a 

properly regi stered label was an inadvertent oversight. Tr. p. 74. This 

was evidenced by the fact that several days after the inspection took 

p 1 ace, t1r. Kaczor , Plant r1ana9er, received a te 1 e~hone ca 11 from the 

Safety Officer advising hi~ of the omiss ion and within one-half hour 

the one- gallon size labels had been rerlaced with the correct label s. 

For the foregoing reason, Count I is hereby dis~issed. 

Count IV was withdrawn during the hearing after Corn~lainant had 

placed his case in evidence which consisted solely of documentary 
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evidence which set forth conclusions concerning the efficaciousness of 

Respondents rat and mouse killer. Respondent did not object to the 

admission of these documents into evidence. Appearing pro se may have 

affected these admissions. EPA-4-7. There was no opportunity afforded 

Respondent to cross-examine witnesses concerning these documents or the 

conclusions reached therein. 

Respondent was nevertheless afforded an opportunity to make 

a statement in lieu of cross-examination of witnesses. Examination 

of counsel for Complianant was also permitted. 

Since Respondent appeared pro se and was prepared to cross

examine Complainant's witnesses concerning factors which it considered 

to be procedural errors in the conduct of the efficacy tests for its 

product Magic Circle Warfarin Rat and Mouse Killer, and made a 

statement which emphasizes these purported errors, none of which 

were disputed by Complainant, it would be patently unfair to permit 

Complainant to simply withdraw Count IV without some consideration by 

the Court. Therefore, while there are instances involving withdrawal 

of a complaint where both parties are represented by counsel, and both 

agree to the withdrawal, there are others which would not permit 

withdrawal where Respondent appears pro se and, as here, Respondent was 

not afforded an opportunity to cross examine. It is therefore hereby 

ordered that the wi thdrawal of Count IV is with prejudice. 

Findings of Fact 

1. Respondent is a Pennsylvania corporation with its place of 

business located at 800 Hiesters Lane, Reading, Pennsylvania 19604. 

Its gross sales exceed $1,000,000.00 annually and the assessment of 

the proposed penalty will not effect its ability to continue in business. 
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2. On or about August 5, 1977, Respondent held for sale or 

distribution at its establishment in Readin~, Penns~lvania the 

pesticides, "flagic Circle f·1 ili Insecticide with DDVP", 11Maqic Circle 

Industrial Insecticide", "~1aoic Circle P.esidual Spray" , and "t1a~Jic 

Circle Harfarin ~at and r .~ouse Killer'' . 

3. Samnles of these r>roducts were obtained from ~espondent by a 

dv1y authorized Safety Officer of Complainant . 

4. Respondent held for sale 1, 5, 38 and 50 9allon sizes of 

M~l ic Circle tlill Insecticide with DDVP . The 5, 38 and 50 gallon 

$izes had affixed thereto an acceptable, re~istered label . 

5. Only the label affixed to the one ~al lon size was not 

accentable. Only 33 one 0allon sizes were on hand, with a total 

retail value of $160.00 . 

6. Failure to have the acceptable label affixed to the one 

gallon size was an oversi9ht which was corrected within one- half 

hour after being called to Respondent's attention t\'JO days after the 

official inspection disclosec the fact. 

7. The EPA establishMent number was not printed on the label 

of ~lagic Circle Industrial Insecticide. 

8. The statement ~~~1anufactured ~ J. C. Ehrl i ch 11 ap!'leared on the 

label affixed to f·1agic Circle Residual Spray instead of "tianufactured 

for J. C. Ehrlich". 

Conclusions 

I have taken into account all of the factors that are required 

to be considered in determining the appropriateness of a civil penalty . 
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I ar:1 of the vievJ that a civil renalty in thi s matter is inappropriate. 

The prooosed Findings of Fact and Conclusions which were sub-

r:1itted have been considered . To the extent that they are consistent 

with Findings of Fact, and Discussion and Conclusions herein, they 

are aranteti , otherv1ise the~' are denieu. 

It is also concluded that the withdrawal of Count IV, for the 

reasons stated herein , is with prejudice. 

Having considered the entire record and based on the Findin~s 

of Fact, and Discussion and Conclusions herein, it is prooosed that 

t he following order be issued. 

FINAL ORDEP-

The Conplaint issued on September 5, 1970 against Respondent 

na~ed herein is dismissed. 

· ..- ·- i ~ ... ·;o.,._c/ J ) .. 

1 

}~- .. :·~~ c /~ 
I • -Edward £l . Finch 

Februar~' 11, 1980 Ad~i nistrative Law Jud~e 

Unless aopeal is taken by the filing of exceptions pursuant 
to Sec. 168.51 of the Rules of Practice or the Reaional Administrator 
elects to reviev~ this decision on his own motion,'.the Order shall 
beco~e the Final Order of the Re9iona l Adninistrator. (See 
Sec. 16G.46(c)). 


